
 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to request this 
service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, June 6, 2018 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the May 23, 2018 Meeting 
 

3. Conditional Use Permit – Beloit International Film Festival Outdoor Event – 701 Third Street 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor 
entertainment event with the possession, sale, and consumption of alcoholic beverages in an 
M-2, General Manufacturing District, for the Ironworks property located at 701 Third Street 

4. Conditional Use Permit – Royalty Lounge – 530 E Grand Avenue 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor 
seating area (deck) with the possession, sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages in a CBD-
1, Central Business District Core, for the property located at 530 E Grand Avenue  

5. Zoning Map Amendment – Our Savior’s Lutheran Church –737  and 749 Bluff Street 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning 
district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential to PLI, Public Lands and 
Institutions, for the church property located at 749 Bluff Street and from R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions, for a portion of the residential property 
located at 737 Bluff Street 

6. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
 

7. Adjournment 
 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Frank Fuerte in the Community 
Development Department at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

 
Notice Posted:  June 1, 2018 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 
 



Page 1 of 3

Meeting Minutes
Beloit City Plan Commission

Wednesday, May 23, 2018 at 7:00 PM
The Forum

Beloit City Hall
100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
The meeting was called to order at 7:01pm. Commissioners Haynes, Weeden, Johnson,
Faragher, Ruster, and Finnegan were present. City Councilor Mark Preuschl was absent.

2. Nomination and Election of Officers
a. Nomination and Election of Chairperson

Commissioner Haynes nominated Commissioner James Faragher, Commissioner
Finnegan seconded the motion. Motion passed, voice vote.

b. Nomination and Election of Vice-Chairperson
Commissioner Ruster nominated Commissioner Timothy Weeden, Commissioner
Finnegan seconded the motion. Motion passed, voice vote.

3. Approval of the Minutes of the April 18, 2018 Meeting
Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Johnson seconded
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.

4. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 9520 South Clinic Road
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and
recommendation.

Commissioner Haynes moved to approve the Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map.
Commissioner Ruster seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.

5. Sign Ordinance Exception – Truk’t – 443 E Grand Avenue
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and
recommendation.

Commissioner Ruster asked Ms. Christensen why staff was recommending approval of the
sign exception if it was still outside the city’s sign ordinance guidelines. Ms. Christensen
directed the commissioner to the staff report outlining the staff’s opinion on why an
exception to the ordinance should be granted. However, the final decision on the



Page 2 of 3

exception will be made by the commission. She also explained that due to the 45 degree
angle at the intersection, only a portion of the projecting sign is in the right-of-way.

Commissioner Haynes commented on the uniqueness of the building, that he believes this
exception would not create precedence because of those unique features (45 degree angle
which means that the hardship was not created by the applicant), thus giving the
committee an adequate reason to apply an exception.

Commissioner Johnson asked if this would be the primary and only sign for the business.
Ms. Christensen commented that the building includes two separate businesses, and each
would have its own sign, one for Truk’t and one for Blue Collar Coffee. Commissioner
Johnson mentioned that if the sign was any smaller, it would not be visible from all four
sides of the intersection. He also believed that the uniqueness of the building contributes
to his recommendation to grant an exception for the sign. Commissioner Weeden agreed
and commented that the referenced sign would be less intrusive than a typical sign
projecting 4 feet from the building wall. Commissioner Weeden also commented that if the
City Engineer has not expressed any evidence regarding the obstruction of any traffic
signals, there should not be an issue for granting the exception.

Commissioner Faragher asked staff if the Downtown Beloit Association (DBA) had
expressed any concerns regarding the proposed sign. Planning and Building Services
Director, Drew Pennington, discussed the review of the sign exception by the DBA Design
Review Board, a subcommittee of the DBA. While some individuals had concerns, others
did like the design of the original sign, which would have projected 10 feet from the
building.

Bill Dorr, 836 Church Street, directed the commission to the city ordinance regarding
projecting signs. Mr. Dorr argued that the owners should abide by the city regulations and
the sign ordinance. He indicated that he believed that the sign face and sign structure
were required to be included in the calculation of sign area. Ms. Christensen directed the
commissioners to the city’s sign ordinance regarding Projecting Signs and commented on
the definition of sign area which is defined as sign face and does not include structure.

Commissioner Ruster asked if the attached rendering of the proposal was to scale. Josh
Mory representing Hendricks Commercial Properties, located at 525 Third Street, Suite 300
in Beloit, stated that the rendering was to scale within inches, and the structure would not
be far from what was proposed. Mr. Mory also discussed some concerns by the City
Engineer regarding the obstruction of traffic signals. He indicated that he did not believe
that the sign, as proposed, would obstruct the signals. He also indicated that the proposed
signage met their corporate design standards.

Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the sign ordinance exception. Commissioner
Haynes seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.



Page 3 of 3

6. Presentation by the Planning Staff on the Comprehensive Plan Update
Director of Planning and Building Services, Drew Pennington, presented a progress report
and next steps in the Comprehensive Plan Update. He explained that the next steps
include two Community Open House(s) in June, Plan Commission public hearings in June or
July (followed by a 30-day public comment period) and a City Council public hearing and
adoption in August. Mr. Pennington also addressed questions regarding the
Comprehensive Plan updates. Commissioner Weeden asked Mr. Pennington if there was a
statement included in the plan that prioritized housing in any ongoing boundary
agreements or negotiations with any of the city’s surrounding towns. Mr. Pennington
commented that the steering committee did discuss whether it was appropriate to take a
position for or against incorporation, but decided against it. Mr. Pennington stated that a
policy position on prioritizing housing in any boundary negotiations could be considered
and added to the plan.

7. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
Ms. Christensen explained that the City is moving forward with temporary closure of
Fourth Street in front of the Beloit Memorial High School. A public meeting was held on
the closure, and the City will be taking ordinance amendments related to parking and turn
lanes to allow for better traffic flow on the side streets. The City is working with DBA and
Engineering on how to implement the Downtown parking study and although there were
not any current parking problems, the collaboration is to plan and prevent any future
problems. Judy Robson has been appointed to the Planning Commission and will be
attending the next meeting. City Councilor Mark Preuschl has been appointed to the
Planning Commission as the new Council Representative.

8. Adjournment
Meeting adjourned at 8:03pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Frank Fuerte.



June 6 Staff Report 3, CU-2018-04, 701 Third Street

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 6, 2018 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CU-2018-04

Applicant: Max Maiken, BIFF Owner: Hendricks Commercial Prop. Location: 701 Third Street

Existing Zoning: M-2, General
Manufacturing District

Existing Land Use: Ironworks Office
Campus

Parcel Size: 18.6 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Beloit International Film Festival (BIFF) has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor
entertainment event with the possession, sale, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in an M-2, General Manufacturing
District, for the Ironworks property located at 701 Third Street.

Key Issues:
 Last summer, BIFF held their inaugural “Summer Blockbuster” fundraising concert on Third Street, which was

closed for the day. BIFF has proposed moving this event to the eastern end of the Ironworks Spine, which is the
private driveway leading from Third Street to the cul-de-sac along the river.

 The proposed event on Saturday, August 11, 2018 will include a stage featuring several bands, food & beverage
vendors, portable toilets, and a portable movie screen.

 The event area will be surrounded by fencing and will be accessible from the Spine driveway on the west and
from the new bike/pedestrian bridge over the river. Due to public access easements, the applicant will need to
maintain a public pathway through the Spine for bicyclists and pedestrians not attending the event.

 Due to the proposed activities, there are numerous approvals required including an outdoor vendor’s permit, a
license to serve alcoholic beverages, and a public entertainment license. If approved, the requested Conditional
Use Permit would allow this event to occur annually on the Ironworks property.

 The applicant and the Review Agents conducted a site visit on May 23, 2018. The applicant agreed to provide
temporary fencing around the event area, and to ensure that a fire lane is provided at all times. There is a wall-
mounted fire hydrant within the event area that may not be blocked during the event. The applicant intends to
have only one entrance gate near the convergence of the bike/pedestrian bridge and spine driveway as shown on
the attached site sketch. The applicant will work with the property owner to determine the best location for traffic
barricades along the Spine driveway. The applicant will not allow attendees to sit on the elevated flood wall, as
the rip-rap sloping from the flood wall to the river may present a fall hazard to those on top of the wall.

 The YMCA is the only other property owner within the mandatory 150-foot notice radius. However, the applicant
intends to notify the owners of condo units in the Heritage View building on the opposite side of the river.

 The application and site sketch are attached.
 Findings of Fact

Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

• The proposed one-day event will occur in the middle of a bustling urban environment that
includes noise, glare, and heavy foot traffic. The proposed event will end by 11 PM and will
otherwise comply with the noise ordinance.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

• The proposed event will occur on a Saturday, when most offices at the Ironworks campus are
not open. The YMCA has been notified of this proposed event and has not raised any
objections. The Heritage View condo owners will be notified in advance. While some owners
may find the event temporarily disruptive, others may enjoy the availability of free
entertainment from their balconies.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property;

• The proposed event is a one-day annual event that is not expected to impact property values.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development



June 6 Staff Report 3, CU-2018-04, 701 Third Street

and improvement of the surrounding property;
• Not applicable

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar
or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

• Not applicable
f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to

serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;
• The existing nearby public and private parking lots include sufficient off-street parking, and

the new bike/pedestrian bridge further enhances the accessibility of the site.
• As requested by the Fire Department, the applicant will maintain a Fire Lane.

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
• Most attendees will be parking in nearby lots and walking 1-3 blocks to the event.
• The applicant will work with the property owner to discourage vehicles from turning into the

Spine driveway on the day of the event, as turn-around space will be limited.
h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

• The applicant will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends General Industrial uses for the subject property. The underlying M-2 zoning
classification is consistent with this recommendation. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal
#4 by creating and sustaining a high quality of life through unique community events.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor
entertainment event with the possession, sale, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in an M-2, General Manufacturing
District, for the Ironworks property located at 701 Third Street, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the
following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes BIFF to hold one, single-day outdoor event on the Ironworks property
each calendar year, provided that the property owner authorizes each event.

2. Prior to the first and each subsequent event, the applicant (and/or their vendors) shall obtain all required permits
and licenses, including an outdoor vendor’s permit, a license to serve alcoholic beverages, and a public
entertainment license.

3. To control the possession, sale, & consumption of alcoholic beverages, the entire event area shall be contained
by existing building walls and temporary fencing. The fencing shall allow quick removal to allow access to a 20-
foot fire lane throughout the event space. Access to the existing wall hydrant shall not be impeded.

4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission
and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Photos, Site Sketch, Application, and Public Notice.



June 6 Staff Report 3, CU-2018-04, 701 Third Street

Location Map

Event Area



June 6 Staff Report 3, CU-2018-04, 701 Third Street

Site Sketch



June 6 Staff Report 3, CU-2018-04, 701 Third Street



June 6 Staff Report 3, CU-2018-04, 701 Third Street



June 6 Staff Report 3, CU-2018-04, 701 Third Street



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: June 6, 2018 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CU-2018-05

Applicant: Donta Evans Owner: Roberta Ciulla Revocable
Trust

Location: 530 E. Grand Avenue

Existing Zoning: CBD-1 Central
Business District-Core

Existing Land Use: Tavern Parcel Size: 0.1 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Donta Evans, DBA Royalty Lounge, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area
(deck) with the possession, sale, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in the CBD-1 Central Business District-Core, for
the property located at 530 E. Grand Avenue.

Key Issues:
 The applicant has proposed the construction of a 7-foot by 20-foot covered deck at the southwestern corner of the

building. As shown on the attachments, the deck would serve as the designated smoking area for patrons, and
would be accessible through the lounge only.

 The applicant has provided a title report demonstrating that the property owner owns the L-shaped parcel known
as Lot 1 of Smith’s Subdivision, which is attached to the subject property. The proposed deck will be located on
Lot 1 of Smith’s Subdivision, which appears to be an alley but is private property. The title report does not include
any mention of an easement over Lot 1 for the benefit of adjacent owners.

 The attached photos illustrate the design concept. The applicant has noted that the deck will include an awning
and railings. The application and site sketch are also attached.

 Section 4-902 of the Zoning Ordinance states that outdoor seating areas in CBD-1 are only allowed if reviewed
and approved in accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review procedures.

 The applicant has indicated that he intends to seek an agreement with an adjacent property owner to store his
dumpsters, which will not be accessible from the private alley once the deck has been constructed.

 The applicant has indicated that he intends to install security cameras that will cover the proposed deck area, and
will have an employee stationed at the building exit to the deck when it is in use.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to the owners of surrounding properties. Planning staff has not received any
comments.

 The Fire Department has requested standard conditions relating to an emergency exit. The Police Department
has requested completion of the applicant’s ongoing surveillance camera project and assignment of an employee
at the exit to the deck to control access and to monitor capacity and noise. No other comments were received.

 Findings of Fact
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

• Subject to conditions of approval relating to access, capacity, and visibility, the proposed
deck is not expected to be detrimental to public health or welfare.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

• Due to the proximity of upper-floor housing, staff is recommending a condition of approval
that will prohibit music in the deck area after 10 PM and will limit the number of patrons using
the deck at any one time.

• The surrounding property owners (tattoo shop, bank, and auto sales lot) have been notified of
this proposed outdoor seating area.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property;

• The proposed deck is part of the applicant’s ongoing improvements to the subject property,
which he currently leases but may eventually purchase.

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development
and improvement of the surrounding property;



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue

• The surrounding area is fully developed.
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar

or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

• The proposed deck will include a railing and awning, and detailed plans will be reviewed by
staff during Architectural Review.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

• Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available and currently serve the property.
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

• The deck will prevent the use of 2-3 angled parking stalls on the adjacent tattoo shop
property, which currently utilize the private alley on the subject property for in/out movements.
The applicant has provided title work showing the absence of an easement for these
movements. Any dispute over this issue is a civil matter between the property owners.
Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval relating to dumpster storage and
access, given the public health issues associated with trash & recycling accumulation.

• There are no off-street parking requirements in the Central Business District. Customers will
continue to utilize on-street parking.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
• The applicant will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Downtown Plan recommends Mixed Uses for the subject property. This request and the underlying CBD-1
zoning classification are consistent with this recommendation. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit
Strategic Goal #3 by encouraging economic growth.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating
area (deck) with the possession, sale, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in the CBD-1 Central Business District-Core,
for the property located at 530 E. Grand Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following
conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the deck shown in the application attachments and the extension of the
possession, sale & consumption of alcohol onto said deck, subject to all of the conditions below. Prior to
establishment of the conditional uses, the applicant shall amend the liquor license for the premises to include the
outdoor seating area.

2. Before constructing the deck, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate and a Building Permit.
3. Prior to issuance of permits to construct the deck, the applicant shall provide a copy of a written agreement

allowing off-site placement of the trash & recycling dumpsters.
4. Prior to use of the deck, the applicant shall finish his current project involving the installation of at least two

security cameras that will cover the deck area.
5. The maximum capacity of the deck shall be six (6) persons. This maximum capacity shall be posted inside the

building and within the outdoor seating area. The applicant shall have an employee stationed at the building exit
to the deck to prevent unauthorized entry to the tavern and to enforce the maximum capacity.

6. The deck shall include an emergency exit-only door or gate. The door or gate shall be at least three (3) feet wide
and a clear path between the building door and the emergency exit shall be maintained.

7. Music may not be played in the outdoor seating area after 10:00 PM.
8. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission

and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Example Photos, Site Photos, Site Sketch, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue

Design Example



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue

Looking South

Looking North



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue

Site Sketch



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue



June 6 Staff Report 4, CU-2018-05, 530 E. Grand Avenue



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION
Meeting Date: June 6, 2018 Agenda Items: 5 File Number: ZMA-2018-04
Applicant: Our Savior’s Lutheran
Church

Owner: Our Savior’s Lutheran Church Location: 737 & 749 Bluff Street

Existing Zoning: R-1B & R-3 Existing Land Use: Institutional Parcel Size: 0.4 & 1.23 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Our Savior’s Lutheran Church has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district
classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions, for the church property
located at 749 Bluff Street and from R-1B, Single-Family Residential to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions, for the rear
portion of the residential property located at 737 Bluff Street.

Key Issues:
 In addition to the main church parcel located at 749 Bluff Street, the applicant owns the adjacent residential parcel

addressed as 737 Bluff Street. For more than a decade, the residential structure at 737 Bluff Street has been
used as a day shelter for homeless individuals. In addition to the residential structure, there is a garage and
dumpster pad located on the 737 Bluff Street parcel, which is contiguous to the church’s main parking lot.

 The church intends to sell the 737 Bluff Street parcel, but desires to retain use of the detached garage, dumpster
area, and vacant land for possible future parking expansion. In order to accomplish these objectives, Planning
staff recommended and the applicant commissioned the attached Plat of Survey.

 The attached Plat of Survey includes a lot line adjustment that will incorporate two-thirds of the 737 Bluff Street
parcel into the church parcel. Proposed Parcel A is 11,050 square feet and includes the garage and dumpster
pad, and will be attached to the church parcel. The remaining 737 Bluff parcel is 6,360 square feet, and will be
offered for sale. The remaining parcel meets the minimum requirements in the R-1B District.

 Parcel A must be rezoned from R-1B to PLI as part of this process, which will allow it to be combined with the
church parcel at 749 Bluff Street. The applicant has also proposed rezoning the main church parcel from R-3 to
PLI, as PLI is the most appropriate classification for a large-scale religious institution.

 Both affected properties are located in and will remain in the Bluff Street Historic District, and the Landmarks
Commission has been advised of this proposed rezoning action.

 Findings of Fact – Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:
a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. The proposed Zoning Map

Amendment does not involve a change in land use, as the applicant will incorporate the rear 11,000 square
feet of the property at 737 Bluff Street into the main church parcel and will continue to use the garage,
dumpster pad, and open space as accessory to the church use. The uses that are permitted in the PLI district
include public and quasi-public institutional uses that are compatible with nearby land uses.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property. PLI is a special
purpose zoning district that is frequently adjacent to single-family zoning districts. There are several existing
PLI districts along Bluff Street due to the concentration of parks, churches, and other institutional uses.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification.
The church property located at 749 Bluff Street is not suitable for the uses permitted in the R-3 district, which
is primarily a multifamily residential district. Including 749 Bluff Street in this proposed rezoning action to PLI
will clean-up an existing mismatch in suitability. After Parcel A is transferred, the remaining 6,360 square-foot
residential parcel (737 Bluff Street) is likely to be sold as a single-family dwelling and is large enough to
accommodate a new detached garage for future use.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
The most recent nearby Zoning Map Amendment involved the properties located at 631-657 Bluff Street in
2016, when they were rezoned to facilitate the rehabilitation and occupancy of the historic apartment building
located at 640 Bluff Street.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
Although the Comprehensive Plan recommends residential uses for the subject properties, the plan specifically
recommends the inclusion of supportive institutional uses such as churches, schools, and parks within residential
neighborhoods. Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #4 by creating and sustaining a high quality of life.



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The proposed rezoning action will allow the preservation and reuse of

an existing residential structure. Adaptive reuse capitalizes on the embodied energy in existing structures.
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The proposed rezoning action

will help the applicant to reach their strategic objectives.

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions, for the church
property located at 749 Bluff Street and from R-1B, Single-Family Residential to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions, for the
rear portion of the residential property located at 737 Bluff Street.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Plat of Survey, Application, Public Notice, & Mailing List



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street



June 6 Staff Report 5, ZMA-2018-04, 737-749 Bluff Street


